
CITY OF GROVE CITY, OHIO
 

• 
COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 06. 2001 Regular Meeting 

The regular meeting of Council was called to order by President Bennett, at 8:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chamber, City Hall, 4035 Broadway. 

After a moment of silent prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance, roll was called and the following 
members were present: 

Chris Fulton Vaughn ROOi Steve Bennett Budd Eversman Maria Klemack 

1.	 Mr. Eversman moved to dispense with the reading of the minutes for the previous meeting and the 
special meeting of 7/(1)/01 and approve as written; seconded by Mr. Fulton. 

Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 

• 
2. President Bennett recognized Mr. Warren Guard, representing the G.C. Visitors & Convention 

Bureau, for a presentation. Mr. Guard presented a donation of $500.00 to the Gardens @ Gantz to 
assist in offsetting the costs of the vandalism that occurred there a couple of months ago. The City 
Administrator and Council thanked the VC Bureau for their generosity. The City Administrator 
stated that the city just received a quote for an alarm system at the Gardens. H asked that the V.C. 
Bureau consider participate in half the cost, with the City paying the other half ($5,000 each). Mr. 
Gard stated that he would be happy to take the request back to the Board. 

3. President Bennett read the agenda items and they were approved by unanimous consent. 

The Chair recognized Mr. Ram, chainnan of the Lands & Zoning Committee, for discussion 
and voting of legislative agenda items under said committee. 

1.	 Ordinance C-39-01 (Vacate and Rededicate a Sanitary Sewer Easement lying South of S.R. 
665 and east of Seeds Road and across the parcel for Fed Ex) was given its second reading and 
public hearing. 

Mr. Stage, City Admin., stated that they are still negotiating with Federal Express. He said 
they did receive a letter from them today, but requested that this be postponed until 8120/01. 

There being no additional questions or comments, Mr. Radi moved it be postponed to 8/20/01; 
seconded by Mr. Fulton. 

Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 

• 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 

2.	 Ordinance C-42-01 (Vacate a portion of an Alley located behind Lots 11 - 14 and lying west 
of Wilbur Ave.) was given its second reading and public hearing. 



Mr. Blackburn, Dir. of Service, explained that the property owners along Wilbur requested 

• that this alley be vacated. After an investigation, it was determined that the City isn't and 
more than likely won't utilize this alley. 

Ms. Kathy Wilkins, Park Street resident and owner of the property on the other side of the 
alley, explained that their property runs almost the entire length of the alley and they use it as 
an ingress/egress to the back of their lot. They have a boat and camper that they bring in and 
out due to the narrow drive and access from the front. Mr. Radi asked Mr. Blackburn what 
the current condition of the alley was. Mr. Blackburn indicated that it is soil and grass. Mr. 
Clark, Dir. of Law, stated that the plat shows a 16' alley south of the vacation area that does 
connect to the Wilkins property. They will also receive 10' of the vacation. He commented 
that the vacation request has been grass for 50 + years (he grew up on Park Street). Ms. 
Wilkins stated that the neighbor keeps their camper at the back of that alley and they are 
unable to use it because it is blocked. Mr. Fulton asked why they needed to vacate the alley. 
Mr. Blackburn stated that the property owners along Wilbur claim that they maintain the alley 
and wish it to be vacated. Ms. Wilkins said they maintain most of that alley. President 
Bennett recommended postponement until additional research could be done on the area and 
the other active alleys that access the Wilkins property. Mr. Stage agreed. Mr. Radi asked 
Ms. Kelly if there has been any correspondence on this. Ms. Kelly said no correspondence or 
phone calls have been received. 

There being no additional questions or comments, President Bennett moved it be postponed 
unti19117/01; seconded by Mr. Fulton. 

Mr. Bennett Yes•	 Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 

3.	 Ordinance C-46-01 (Accept the Plat of Hoover Park, Section 6, Part 2) was given its second 
reading and public hearing. 

Mr. Stage commented that there is still an issue regarding the property lines on the North side. 
They are still questioning the measurements and recommended it be postponed to the first 

meeting in September. 

There being no additional questions or comments, Mr. Radi moved it be postponed to 9/4/01; 
seconded by Mr. Eversman. 

Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 

• 
4. Ordinance C-48-01 (Accept the Plat of Quail Creek, Section 5) was given its second reading 

and public hearing . 

2
 



Mr. Terry Morrison, White Oak Communities, was present and offered to answer any 
questions. 

• There being no questions or comments, Mr. Radi moved it be approved; seconded by Mr. 
Eversman. 

Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 

5.	 Resolution CR-51-01 (Approve the Exterior Building Colors and Materials for Hoggy's 
Restaurant) was given its reading and public hearing. 

Ms Kelly stated that a phone call was received today from Mr. Andy Simpson, architect for 
Hoggy's, explaining that his flight had been cancelled and he was unable to get back to Ohio 
for this evenings meeting. He requested that this resolution be postponed. 

There being no additional questions or comments, Mr. Radi moved it be postponed to 8/20/01; 

• 

seconded by Ms. Klemack. 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 

The Chair recognized Ms. Klemack, Chainnan of the Safety Committee, for discussion and 
voting of legislative agenda items under said committee. 

1.	 Ordinance C-49-01 (Amend Various Sections of Part 11 titled Planning and Zoning to 
establish the Collection of Development Fees for Applications or Petitions) was given its 
second reading and public hearing. 

Ms. Mary Bearden, Dir. of Development, explained that this is a housekeeping measure to 
reflect the fees that area currently being collected. 

It was explained that after the first reading, a change was made to delete any changes to 
Chapter 1322 and make those amendments to Sections 1138.05(a) and (b), where it would be 
better addressed. 

There	 being no additional questions or comments, Ms. Klemack moved to amend the 
Ordinance to delete any change to Chapter 1322 and include those changes shown in the 
"Amended" Ordinance for Sections 1138.05 (a) & (b); seconded by Mr. Radi. 

Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 

•	 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 

3
 



Ms. Klemack moved to replace the words "Finance Director" with "City of Grove City" 
throughout the proposed amended areas; seconded by Mr. Eversman. 

• Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 

There being no additional questions or comments, Ms. Klemack moved it be approved; 
seconded by Mr. Eversman. 

Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 

2.	 Ordinance C-50-01 (Amend Chapter 155 titled Civil Service Commission) was given its first 
reading. Second reading and public hearing will be held on August 20, 2001. 

3.	 Resolution CR-52-0l (Authorize the Mayor to enter into a Contract with the Fraternal Order of 
Police, Capital City Lodge #9) was given its reading and public hearing. 

• 
Mr. Ron Linville, attorney representing the City, explained that he has been working on this 
since April, 2000. There was an issue regarding health benefits that has been resolved. He 
explained that there are actually two contracts. The first will be retroactive from July, 1, 2000 
to June 30, 2001. The second contract will run from July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2004. 

Mr. Fulton stated that this resolution allows the Mayor to enter into those contracts. As 
pointed out in Caucus, in the urgency to get a draft to Council, there are some typos and small 
corrections that have been identified and confirmed that they will be taken care of before the 
signing. Mr. Linville said yes, they would be cleaned up before the signing and a copy would 
be provided. Mr. Eversman commented that the bulk of the contract is salary related (4.5%, 
4% next three years). The other changes equate to less than 1/10 of 1% of an increase. 

There being no additional questions or comments, Ms. Klemack moved it be approved; 
seconded by President Bennett. 

Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 

The Chair recognized Mr. Eversman, Chainnan of the Finance Committee, for discussion 
and voting of legislative agenda items under said committee. 

• 
1. Ordinance C-47-0l (Amend Various Chapters of Part 1 titled Administrative) was given its 

second reading and public hearing. 

4
 



Mr. Steve Bowshier, Legal Advisor for the Civil Service Commission, stated that technically, 

• 
the Civil Service Commission must recommend these changes. While they initiated none of 
the changes, they did meet and reviewed those changes. They have passed a resolution to 
recommended and certify these changes to Council for their approval. He commented that the 
Commission has been a passive commission. The recommended changes were found to be 
consistent with current practice, but, not consistent with what the current Code stipulates. If 

• 

approved, the Civil Service Commission will no longer certify changes to Council for 
approval, they will be initiated by the Administration, subject to Council approval and Civil 
Service review. President Bennett asked Mr. Stage about this. During Caucus it was 
explained that approval of a classified employee must be approved by the Civil Service 
Commission and Mr. Bowshier is stating the opposite. Mr. Stage said the current provisions 
require that any changes dealing with personnel had to go through the Civil Service 
Commission. This changes the Code to be consistent with current practice, for example 
changes to Chapter 161 have never gone through the Commission. He said the process to 
change a position to, or from, classified stays like it is. Mr. Bowshier provided his 
interpretation and Mr. Guttman also gave his opinion. He said the process will now be 
initiated by the Administration, but must still go through the Civil Service Commission and 
approved by Council. President Bennett stated that there is a very elaborate and expanded 
sexual harassment policy. He asked for the reasoning behind it. Mr. Guttman explained that 
there has been a recent trend in harassment law to address both sexual and general harassment 
policy. This follows recent legislation at the State and Federal level. President Bennett asked 
why we were changing 159.04 to requiring an employee to resign before becoming a candidate 
for any election. Mr. Guttman stated that this is consistent with other municipalities in Central 
Ohio. Mr. Fulton stated that this is an area he works with pretty regularly and he feels 
comfortable with having these updated provisions as part of the Code. It is must better as a 
liability prevention standpoint. Mr. Stage commented that he would not have taken the City 
Administrator's position without knowing Council was supportive of these updates. He 
believes the City and its employees are better protected. 

President Bennett moved to amend Section 159.04 to remove the last "highlighted" paragraph 
starting "No person... "; seconded by Mr. Eversman. 

Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 

There being no additional questions or comments, Mr. Eversman moved it be approved, as 
amended; seconded by President Bennett. 

Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 

•
 
5
 



2. Ordinance C-51-01 (Appropriate $346,894.00 from the General Fund for the Current Expense 
of Curtis Avenue Reconstruction and to declare an emergency) was given its first reading . 

• Mr. Blackburn, Dir. of Service, explained that the City has been successful in getting grant 
money for road projects from the Community Block Grant Program. As part of the 
requirements, there are certain deadlines that need to be met in order to receive these funds. 

There being no additional questions or comments, Mr. Eversman moved that the Rules of 
Council be suspended and the waiting period waived; seconded by Mr. Radi. 

Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 

Mr. Eversman moved this ordinance be approved as an emergency measure; seconded by 
President Bennett. 

Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 

• 
3. Ordinance C-52-01 (Establish the Curtis Avenue CDBG Fund and Appropriate $191,263.00 

from Said Fund for the Current Expense of Road Reconstruction and declare an emergency) 

Mr. Blackburn, Dir. of Service, stated that this is the companion piece to C-51-01. 

There being no additional questions or comments, Mr. Eversman moved that the Rules of 
Council be suspended and the waiting period waived; seconded by Mr. Radi. 

Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 

Mr. Eversman moved this ordinance be approved as an emergency measure; seconded by Mr. 
Fulton. 

Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 

• 
4. Ordinance C-53-01 (Appropriate $7,248.00 from the DARE Fund for Current Program 

Expenses) was given its first reading. Second reading and public hearing will be held on 
August 20, 2001. 

6
 



5. Ordinance C-54-0l (Appropriate $960,000.00 from the Broadway Project Fund for the 
Current Expense of Road Reconstruction) was given its first reading. Second reading and 

• public hearing will be held on August 20, 2001. 

6. Resolution CR-53-0l (Authorize the Redirection of Funds appropriated for Windsor Park 
Parking Lot Improvements to the Gantz Park Shelter Facilities and Parking Improvements) was 
given its reading and public hearing. 

Mr. Stage explained that it is their desire to defer more parking at Windsor Park. The bids for 
the shelter house for Gantz Park exceeded the appropriation amount in the Budget. He 
believes it is a key piece for our open space. 

There being no additional questions or comments, Mr. Eversman moved it be approved; 
seconded by Mr. Radi. 

Mr. Radi Yes 
Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 

The Chair asked that any new business to be brought before the attention of Council be 
done so at this time. 

• 
1. President Bennett announced that at their next meeting, Council would entertain a Resolution 

to appropriate funds for the YMCA. He introduced Mr. John Bickley, of the YMCA. 

Mr. Bickley commented that Grove City is part of an $11.3 million campaign, of which each 
community is being asked to raise 1.8 million. At this time, Grove City is in 3rd place, with 
1.3 mills in Hilliard, 1.2 in Gahanna, and 1.18 in Grove City. The community that reaches 
the 1.8 mills first will be the first community to break ground. He said he had an opportunity 
to speak with the Council Members individually last week about appropriating money that 
would put Grove City over the top and be the first community to break ground. He said he 
may take heat from some of the other communities, but that is o.k. He hopes this will spur 
them on. They are excited about coming to Grove City and believe it will be an outstanding 
YMCA community that will bring a lot to it. 

Mr. Eversman noted that the original request was for $625,000.00. In actuality, it will be 
somewhere between $625,000.00 and 670,000.00. This is a large sum and he wants the 
community to know how much is being considered, in order to get their feedback on 
appropriating this additional funding. Mr. Bickley explained that much of the funding is 
coming from outside the community and this will leverage many times more than what the 
actual amount is. Mr. Stage applauded Council for stepping up to this effort. He said he has 
some information on how we can meet the needs of the rest of the park. Mr. Fulton 
commented that they are not trading off other improvements to the park. This will be in 
addition to the other projects on the drawing board. 

• 
President Bennett recognized members of Administration and Council for closing 
comments. 

7 



1. In the Mayor's absence, Mr. Stage submitted the Mayor's Monthly Report and Mr. Radi 
moved it be accepted; seconded by Mr. Fulton. 

• Mr. Bennett Yes 
Mr. Eversman Yes 
Ms. Klemack Yes 
Mr. Fulton Yes 
Mr. Radi Yes 

In closing, Mr. Stage reported on: several improvement projects; stated that a new Records 
Retention Schedule has been approved; that GCKA has asked the City to take over the 
Basketball program and we are reviewing that possibility; on a successful Alumni Tournament, 
despite the rain out on Sunday; a committee has been set up for the City's Sesesqincentenial 
and are working on plans for Homecoming 2002, which may be three days instead of one, 
with Friday evening being much like what has been done in the past and ending with Arts-in
the-Alley. 

President Bennett recommended the Sesesqincentenial Committee look at the weekend before, 
as an entry into the Homecoming weekend, since people do come in then and there would be 
two big events. He also asked for a copy of the Records Retention Schedule. 

• 
2. Council welcomed Mr. Marshall Gividen, Boy Scout Troup 385, who is working on his Eagle 

Merit in Citizenship. Mr. Eversman commented on the Basketball program and urged Ms. 
Conrad, P & R Dir., to make it user subsidized. He also stated that he is not in favor of tying 
the ISO-year anniversary of the City into the Homecoming celebration. Mr. Fulton asked for a 
briefing on this year's Homecoming. Captain Deskins stated that there were no major 
incidents, and as always, they have recommendations for next year's event as part of the post 
review. Mr. Fulton expressed disappointment about not being informed about the Ruby 
Tuesday's grand opening. While members of the Administration were in attendance, only Mr. 
Bennett was present and he was not there as a representative of Council. He explained that he 
is bring this up because this is one more instance in what is becoming a direct pattern of 
alleged misunderstandings/miscommunications where Council is typically the odd man out. 
He explained that he spoke with Mr. Dan Peyton, representative of Ruby Tuesday's, who also 
expressed disappointment in not having Council members present. He also checked with Ms. 
Scott, Mayor's secretary, and appreciated her willingness to discuss this. However, he was 
given two very different stories. He said he doesn't know what the true facts are, since 
Council was kept completely out of the loop. This also happened with the Appleby's opening 
and the Balloon Festival. It appears that if invitations don't go directly to Council Members or 
Ms. Kelly, they don't know about it. He said Council spends a lot of time with developers 
and business owners, in and outside of regular council meetings. Since Council has the final 
vote for development, it certainly makes sense to meet with these businessmen to share 
comments on development. As far as grand openings, why wouldn't Council want to attend as 
a culmination of the development process. It only makes sense to see the finished product. 
Business owners and developers may assume that Council doesn't care, by not being present 
and this is not the case. While it is easy to speculate what is happening with these invitations, 
the bottom line is that Council is being excluded. The City, and most likely the Mayor's 

• 
office, is typically going to be contacted first. Why a call to the Clerk of Council's office 
cannot be made to inform her of the dates and times is beyond him. In his opinion, Council is 
negatively reflected, if they are otherwise ready, willing and able to attend grand openings, but 

8
 



never informed of the event. Quite frankly, it makes the whole City look bad. His main point 
is to inform everyone that City Council is 100% supportive of new and existing businesses in 

• Grove City. If anyone insinuates differently, that person is lying. In attempt to rectify this 
situation, Ms. Mary Bearden has offered to assist in getting information about events out to 
Council. There is no room for political games, personality conflicts or other barriers that 
hinder effective communication and cooperation. It is inherent on us all to let developers and 
business owners know that Grove City supports them and is glad they chose Grove City. On 
his part, he will work to resolve this. Mr. Radi commented that there were several important 
issues dealt with this evening and it is encouraging to know that a lot of work and cooperation 
went into many of them, including the FOP contract, Street Improvements and Park 
improvements. All of these are quality of life issues, and he is happy the City can move 
forward in the way they have this evening. Mrs. Klemack voiced the same concern over not 
receiving invitations. President Bennett echoed Mr. Fulton's comments. It doesn't shed a 
very good light on the city, in general, if a branch of the government is negated from the 
process. 

3.	 After additional comments from Administration and Council, a motion was made to adjourn 
and seconded. Motion carried. 

Council adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 

• 
Tami K. Kelly, CMC/AAE 
Clerk of Council 

St~en M. Bennett 
President 

•
 
9
 


